
NAAPME Board Directors Meeting

December 5, 2024 | 3:00 PM - 4:30 PM

Agenda

I. Convene Meeting & Roll Call 3:00 PM - 3:05 PM
Kristin Stephens, NAAPME Chair

II. Public Comments 3:05 PM - 3:10 PM
Kristin Stephens, NAAPME Chair

III. Decision Item:  3:10 PM - 3:15 PM
Approval of Minutes from the 
October 31, 2024, Board of Directors Meeting
Kristin Stephens, NAAPME Chair

IV. Decision Item: 3:15 PM - 3:20 PM
Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Reconciliation
Darius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

V. Decision Item: 3:20 PM - 3:50 PM
Approve NAAPME 2024 Annual Report
Darius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

VI. “Community Clean Transportation Assistance" 3:50 PM - 4:00 PM
Small Grant Funding Program Update
Darius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

VII. Large Grant Program Discussion 4:00 PM - 4:10 PM
Darius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

VIII. Enterprise Budget and Program Updates 4:10 PM - 4:30 PM
Darius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

IX. Adjournment 4:30 PM
Kristin Stephens, NAAPME Chair

Next Governing Board Meeting: January 23, 2025, 3:00 PM - 4:30 PM



 

NAAPME Board of Directors Meeting - Minutes
October 31, 2024, 3:00 PM to 4:30 PM

Location: CDOT HQ/Virtual (4:05)

Attendance

Present:
Chair Stephens
Director Ferko
Director Holguin
Director Suniga
Vice Chair Baca
Director Wheeler

Excused Absences:
Director Stockinger

Guests:
Kay Hruska – CDOT Office of Accounting and Finance
Toni Wines – CDOT Office of Accounting and Finance
Sam Foster - CDOT Office of Accounting and Finance
Ryan Noles - CDOT R1 Transit
Garrett Seddon - CDOT - DTD Administrative Branch
Siivi Melorango - CDPHE 

NAAPME Staff:
Administrator Pakbaz Pakbaz - NAAPME Administrator 
Suzanna Alvarado - NAAPME Board Secretary 
Phil von Hake - CDOT - Multimodal Planning Branch

I. Convene Meeting & Roll Call:(Video 5:06)
Chair Stephens convened the meeting and Roll Call was conducted.

II. Public Comment:(Video 6:05)

https://youtu.be/_7Klh85Ns74?t=309
https://youtu.be/_7Klh85Ns74?t=365


Administrator Pakbaz indicated there was no public comment. 

III. Decision Item: Approval of Minutes from the September 26, 2024, Board of 
Directors Meeting (Video 6:33)
Motion made to approve by Vice- Chair Baca, seconded by Director Ferko, all in favor, 
motion passed. 

IV. Review draft Fiscal Year 2026 Budget (Video 7:09) 
Administrator Pakbaz presented the draft budget for FY 2025-26 including anticipated 
revenue and roll overs for allocation and next steps. Final Budget for adoption by 
Board of Directors in February 2025. Administrator Pakbaz to bring back information 
on the adjustability of the revenue forecasting model at the next meeting.

V. Enterprise Budget and Program Updates (Video 18:07) 
Administrator Pakbaz  reviewed the NAAPME Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget to Actuals 
and next steps. An update was provided for CDOT’s Communications Office and CDOT 
Policy and Government Relations on outreach around Small Grant NOFO and Call for 
Projects, as well as development of the NAAPME Annual Report for the Transportation 
Commission and Colorado General Assembly. 

VI. “Community Clean Transportation Assistance" Small Grant Funding Program 
Update (Video 22:07)
Administrator Pakbaz discussed the progress of the Small Grant Program,“Community 
Clean Transportation Assistance”. The NOFO application elements along with the 
revised timeline were presented. The Grant Program application will be available on 
the NAAPME website November 4th to Feb 25, 2025. Administrator Pakbaz and Chair 
Stephens discussed  outreach, including presentations with local government entities 
and a webinar session for questions. 

VII. Bus Rapid Transit Update - R1 (Video 32:29)
Ryan Noles of CDOT presented an overview of the high-capacity bus service, Bus 
Rapid Transit (BRT) and the Federal Blvd BRT Project for the Board to consider for 
possible “Larger” Grant Program funding. Administrator Pabaz agreed that 
Directors Holguin and Director Wheeler could meet with Ryan to discuss particular 
considerations/concerns but would need to limit the meeting to two Board 
members present to avoid any open meeting rule violations.

VIII. Adjournment  (Video 1:19:00)

Next Governing Board Meeting: Thursday December 5, 2024, 3:00 - 4:30 PM

https://youtu.be/_7Klh85Ns74?t=4783
https://youtu.be/_7Klh85Ns74?t=1952
https://youtu.be/_7Klh85Ns74?t=1327
https://youtu.be/_7Klh85Ns74?t=1087
https://youtu.be/_7Klh85Ns74?t=429
https://youtu.be/_7Klh85Ns74?t=393


Registry of Actions

Date of Meeting: October 31, 2024 

Action 
Number

Action Decision

2024-20
Motion to approve minutes from September 26, 2024 Board of Directors Meeting

● Motion made by Vice Chair Baca, seconded by Director Ferko

● All in favor, no opposed, motion passed.

Approved

Suzanna Alvarado                                                           11/22/2024     
Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Board Secretary 



Board of Directors Meeting
December 5, 2024



I. Convene Meeting & Roll Call 3:00 PM - 3:05 PM
Kristin Stephens, NAAPME Chair

II. Public Comments 3:05 PM - 3:10 PM
Kristin Stephens, NAAPME Chair

III. Approval of Minutes from the October 31, 2024, Board of Directors Meeting 3:10 PM - 3:15 PM
Kristin Stephens, NAAPME Chair

IV. Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Reconciliation 3:15 PM - 3:20 PM
Darius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

V. Approve NAAPME 2024 Annual Report 3:20 PM - 3:50 PM
Darius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

VI. “Community Clean Transportation Assistance” Program Update 3:50 PM - 4:00 PM
Darius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

VII. Large Grant Program Discussion 4:00 PM - 4:10 PM 
Darius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

VIII. Enterprise Budget and Program Updates 4:10 PM - 4:30 PM
Darius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

IX. Adjournment 4:30 PM
Kristin Stephens, NAAPME Chair

12/5/2024 NAAPME Board Meeting 2

Meeting Agenda

Decision
Item

Decision
Item

Decision
Item



Public Comments 

Kristin Stephens, NAAPME Chair



Decision Item

Approval of Minutes
from the October 31, 2024,
Board of Directors Meeting

Kristin Stephens, NAAPME Board of Directors Chair



Fiscal Year 2025
Budget Reconciliation
Darius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

Sam Foster, CDOT Office of Financial Management & Budget

Ryan Long, CDOT Office of Financial Management & Budget

Decision Item



Line 4:
FY23-24 Revenue Reconciliation 
totaling $1,972,744

Lines 5, 6, and 7:
FY23-24 Roll Forwards totaling 
$17,471,514

● $17,140,832 from 
Programming & Projects

● $130,682 from 
Administrative & Operating 

● $200,000 from 
Contingency Reserve 

Fiscal Year 2025
Budget Reconciliation



Fiscal Year 2025
Revenue Forecast

The primary data inputs for Retail 
Delivery Fee and Rideshare Fee 
revenue forecasts include:

● Actual revenue
● Estimated growth rates from 

2019 Emerging Mobility Study
● Forecast of the Consumer 

Price Index from Moody’s 
Analytics

NAAPME Revenue by Fee



Fiscal Year 2025
Budget Reconciliation

The FY 2023-24 final budget, 
including budget amendments, 
aligns with OFMB’s FY 2023-24 Q1 
forecast (September of 2023). 

At this point, OFMB’s forecast 
only had one year of actual data, 
and the forecast still relied 
heavily on the growth rates 
developed in the 2019 Emerging 
Mobility Study.

Source
FY 2023-24 
Final Budget

FY 2023-24 
Actual 

Revenue Variance

Retail Delivery Fee $2,128,759 $2,505,232 $376,473

Prearranged Ride Fee $6,818,011 $7,964,988 $1,146,977

Interest Earned $0 $449,294 $449,294

NAAPME Total $8,946,770 $10,919,514 $1,972,744

Final Revenue Reconciliation Adjustments



Move to approve the amended FY25 budget 
with a total roll forward amount of 

$17,471,514 and allocate to the enterprise 
funding programs as noted in Appendix A.

Proposed Motion

Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Reconciliation



Approve NAAPME 
2024 Annual Report

Darius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

Decision Item



● Background Information

● Calendar Year 2024 Summary
○ “Community Clean Transportation Assistance Program” Launch
○ Funding Program Evaluation and Eligibility Discussions
○ Board Chair and Vice Chair Elections
○ Updated, Accessible, and Spanish Materials

● Financial Status Report
○ Budget to Actuals for FY 2024
○ Future Revenue Estimates

● Upcoming Activities

The 2024 Annual Report is required to be submitted to the Colorado Senate and 
House Transportation Committees and to the Colorado Transportation Commission.
Report available in meeting packet as attachment B.

Approve NAAPME 2024 Annual Report



Proposed Motion

Approve NAAPME 2024 Annual Report

Motion to adopt the 2024 
Nonattainment Enterprise Annual 

Report, as presented to the Board, 
for submission to the Colorado 

General Assembly and the Colorado 
Transportation Commission.



“Community Clean Transportation Assistance”
(CCTAP) Program Update

Darius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator



CCTAP - Website

codot.gov/programs/naapme/naapme-community-clean-transportation-assistance-grant-funding-program 



Meetings:

● NFRMPO TAC - Nov. 20

● UFR TPR - Dec. 5

● DRCOG TAC - Dec. 16

● Other Stakeholders - TBD

CCTAP - Engagement and Outreach

External Communications:

● Press Release issued Nov. 21

● Presentation on website

● Community Inquiries

● FAQs - Early December Update

● Webinar (TBD)



CCTAP - Updated Timeline

The NAAPME Board of Directors approved the following timeline for this program: 

● November 4, 2024: Notice of Funding Opportunity Opens

● November 2024 through February 2025: Open period for questions, technical assistance, and 
identification of engineering review of proposed project.  Responses to specific questions to 
clarify requirements will be posted on the final business day of the month throughout the open 
period, with final posting of responses to occur by 5:00 PM Friday, February 21, 2025.

● 5:00 PM, February 25, 2025: Deadline to Submit Draft Applications for Review

● March through April 2025: Technical review of applications and engineering review for infrastructure project 
feasibility. 

● 5:00PM, April 30, 2025: Deadline to Submit Final Applications with Engineering Review certification. 

● May 2025: Applications evaluated by Enterprise staff 

● 4:30PM, June 26, 2025: Board of Directors review and award projects for the Fiscal Year 2025 notice of 
funding opportunity. 

● No Later than July 31, 2024: Award Notices Sent to Applicable Parties



Large Grant Program Discussion 

Darius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator



Allocation of Program Funds
Previous Board Discussions

18

● Previously, Board members discussed & agreed with the idea of two separate 
programs. One would fund larger priorities in the nonattainment area, such as 
BRT, and another program would fund smaller projects and community needs.  

● Based on previous discussions, presentations, and the enterprise three focus 
areas, the Board continues to believe that these are appropriate needs for the 
Denver Metro and North Front Range Areas.

● Due to project construction and delivery timelines the Board may need to 
consider authorizing funding for future years. 

● The Board should consider the maximum amount of revenue to utilize for 
larger Bus Rapid Transit Projects to ensure a smaller program has funding 
available for annual or “pay as you go” programs. 



Implementation timeframe
2020-2030 (5 corridors)
• Colorado Blvd.
• East Colfax
• East Colfax Extension
• Federal Blvd.
• CO-119
2030-2040 (5 corridors)
• Alameda Ave.
• Broadway/Lincoln
• I-25 North
• Speer/Leetsdale/Parker
• CO-119 Ext.
2040-2050
• 38th Ave./Park Ave.
Bus Maintenance Facility



20

Recommended transit in the 2050 RTP .

• Expansion of 
Existing Service

• Implementation of 
Local Priorities

• Development of 
Premium Transit 
Analysis Corridors



Large Grant Program Discussion 

● Planned allocation of $119 
million over the course of 
the 10-Year Plan to BRT. 

● Finalization of Enterprise 
Evaluation Criteria in 
10-Year Plan - see next 
slide

● Determination (through 
CCTAP) of how to report 
ozone reduction and DI 
community support.

 

 

● Any other major considerations for developing a potential program for Board Consideration?

 

 



Evaluating Proposals and Funding Programs
Official Eligibility Criteria

22

● Projects are eligible if the activities in the submitted application meet the requirements for the funding program outlined by the Board of 
Directors and meet eligibility requirements set forth in 43-4-1302 C.R.S. and federal statute. 

● Projects must be located in or benefit a nonattainment area.

● Eligible project sponsors meet eligibility criteria under 43-4-1302 C.R.S. to apply for funding, or partner with an eligible entity and have the 
authority to enter into a contract with the State.

● Eligible project sponsors are in good standing with the Colorado Secretary of State, have no projects on the federal inactive list with the 
Colorado Department of Transportation, and have not had a non-compliance determination on a sub-allocated recipient audit/visit.

● Applications for funding will only be considered through an open project call as approved by the Board of Directors for specific programs 
established by the Enterprise.

● Projects must demonstrate emissions reduction benefits and report those benefits to the Enterprise, as a condition for approval.  

● Applications for infrastructure projects (professional services) must complete an engineering assessment with an professional engineering 
entity identified by the Board. 

● A completed infrastructure project is open to the general public and meets the accessibility standards of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) of 1990.

● All projects and project sponsors must follow and be in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations that would 
apply to the project. 

● Applicants must be able to supply cash local matching funds for the projects as required by the specific Enterprise program, or apply for a 
reduction waiver, approved by the Board of Directors. 

 



Technical Appendices
CMAQ Emissions Toolkit - Emission Reduction Benefit Analysis

23

CMAQ Emissions Calculator Tool Kit Webpage



Technical Appendices
Enviroscreen Tool - DI Community and Impacts Assessment

24

Colorado Enviroscreen Website



Board Discussion

25

● General Questions - Would the Board of Directors like for Enterprise Staff to 
develop a proposal for review at a future NAAPME Board meeting?

Other Potential Discussion Questions

● Specific Eligibility and Evaluation Criteria for Bus Rapid Transit Grant Programs? 

● Keeping Requirements from CCTAP regarding CMAQ Tools and Enviroscreen to 
determine: 

○ Ozone Reduction Benefits?

○ Supporting Disproportionately Impacted Communities?

● Discussion on financial administration of the program.

● Discussion on outreach ideas and communication?

● Other potential discussion topics? 



Enterprise Budget and Program Updates

Darius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator



NAAPME
Budget to Actual

October 2024



● Working with CDOT Communications Office and CDOT Policy 
and Government Relations on outreach around Small Grant 
NOFO and Call for Projects.

● Spanish version of 10-Year Plan now on website.

● Continually working on website content to ensure Accessibility.

● Development of Fiscal Year 2026 Budget, including 
reconciliation of funds from FY2024 for current year’s budget.

● Developing Larger Grant Program for BRT.  

Enterprise Program Update



● Recommendation to not hold January Meeting unless Board of Directors has 
specific topics for discussion/action. 

● February 27, 2025

○ Adoption of FY 2025-26 Budget

○ Rideshare and Retail Delivery Fee adjustments for FY 2025-26 

○ “Community Clean Transportation Assistance Program” Update

● March 27, 2025

○ “Community Clean Transportation Assistance Program” Update

○ Discussion on Larger “BRT Focused” Grant Program

Future Board of Directors Meeting Business



Adjournment 

Kristin Stephens, NAAPME Board of Directors Chair



Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise 
Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise Fund 542
Fiscal Year 2024-25 Annual Budget 12/5/24

Fiscal Year 2024-25 Revenues
Line Revenue Source Revenues

Fiscal Year 2024-25 Allocations and Expenses
Line Budget Item Allocation Expenses

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32

Air Pollution Per Ride (Standard Rate) $ 8,054,572
Air Pollution Per Ride (Carshare/ZEV Rate) $ 283,494
Air Pollution Mitigation Retail Delivery Fee $ 2,543,596
Fiscal Year 2023-24 Revenue Reconciliation $ 1,972,744
Roll-Forward from Previous Fiscal Year - Programming & Projects $ 17,140,832
Roll-Forward from Previous Fiscal Year - Administrative & Operating $ 130,682
Roll-Forward from Previous Fiscal Year - Contigency Reserve $ 200,000

Small Project Grant Program $ (18,250,000.00)
Large Project Grant Program $ (7,620,000.00)

Nonattainment Enterprise Staff Compensation $ (100,000)
Nonattainment Enterprise Program Support $ (75,000)
Attorney General's Office Legal Services $ (2,500)
Annual Audit $ (2,000)

Travel Expenses $ (500)

Operating Expenses $ (1,000)

Total Estimated Revenue $ 30,325,919

Total Programming & Projects Expenses $ (25,870,000.00)

Total Administrative & Operating Activities Expenses $ (181,000)

Total Debt Service Expenses $ -  

Total Contingency Reserve Expenses $ -  

Programming & Projects (Pool PST-NAP-25) $ 29,944,919

Administrative & Operating Activities (Cost Center APMEO-542) $ 181,000

Debt Service (Cost Center NAPDS-542) $ -  

Contingency Reserve (Cost Center NAP50-542) $ 200,000

Total Fund 542 Revenues $ 30,325,919
Total Fund 542 Expenses $ (26,051,000)

Total Remaining $ 4,274,919



 Dr
af

t 
 NAAPME 2024 Annual Report 

 Pursuant to C.R.S. § 43-4-1303 (10)(a)(IV) 

 Reporting Period: January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 



 Dr
af

t 
 Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report 

 Background 
 The Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME, or the Enterprise) was 
 established within the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) to support projects that 
 mitigate the environmental and health impacts of increased air pollution from motor vehicles 
 in nonattainment areas of Colorado. Created by Colorado Senate Bill 21-260 (SB 21-260, 
 “Sustainability of the Transportation System”), the Enterprise imposes an Air Pollution Retail 
 Delivery Fee and an Air Pollution per Ride Fee to fund programs and projects that fulfill its 
 business purpose. 

 The primary business purpose of the NAAPME is to “mitigate the environmental and health 
 impacts of increased air pollution from motor vehicle emissions in nonattainment areas that 
 results from the rapid and continuing growth in retail deliveries made by motor vehicles and in 
 prearranged rides provided by transportation network companies by providing funding for eligible 
 projects that reduce traffic, including demand management projects that encourage alternatives 
 to driving alone or that directly reduce air pollution, such as retrofitting of construction 
 equipment, construction of roadside vegetation barriers, and planting trees along medians.” 

 Nonattainment areas in Colorado are designated areas from the U.S. Environmental Protection 
 Agency (EPA) that do not meet ambient air pollution standards. Ozone is the only identified 
 pollutant in which parts of Colorado are currently in nonattainment for these standards. 
 Currently Adams, Arapahoe, Boulder, Broomfield, Denver, Douglas, Jefferson, a portion of 
 Larimer, and Weld Counties are in the designated ozone nonattainment area within the state. 

 Projects funded by the Enterprise look towards reducing the impact of air pollution from 
 ozone in the current nonattainment areas of Colorado. The Enterprise has identified three 
 focus areas in which projects can support this objective, as outlined in its  10-Year Plan  : 

 ●  Sustainably reduce traffic congestion 
 Projects that provide alternatives to single occupancy travel including transit services, 
 active transportation alternatives, and carpool alternatives, as well as roadway operations 
 improvements that sustainably reduce congestion, such as traffic incident management: 
 ○  Expanding interregional transit services (e.g., Bustang); 
 ○  Development and expansion of bus rapid transit services; 
 ○  Mobility Hubs: destinations for transit services that connect interregional and local 

 services, including first and last miles services, electric vehicle charging, and bike parking; 
 ○  New and expanded sidewalks and bike paths; and 
 ○  New and expanded vanpool, carpool, and other services for commuter travel. 

 1 

https://www.codot.gov/programs/naapme/assets-1/nonattainment10yearplan-june-14-2024-draft.pdf


 Dr
af

t 
 Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report 

 ●  Reduce the environmental and health impacts of transportation 
 Reducing impacts from the construction and ongoing operation of transportation projects: 
 ○  Reduce the impact of large highway construction projects; 
 ○  Retrofitting construction equipment for highway projects; 
 ○  Air quality monitoring for larger highway construction projects; and 
 ○  Roadside vegetation barriers. 

 ●  Improve neighborhood connectivity for communities adjacent to highways 
 Fund mitigation measures that help reconnect communities and provide multimodal 
 options to move along and across large urban corridors: 
 ○  More sidewalks and bike paths along major corridors and local roads; 
 ○  Safer bike and pedestrian connectivity along busy urban streets; and 
 ○  Projects that reduce traffic speeds along busy urban streets. 

 Calendar Year 2024 Summary 

 “Community Clean Transportation AssistanceProgram (CCTAP)” 
 The Enterprise Board of Directors approved its first grant funding program in September 2024. 
 The Community Clean Transportation Assistance Program (CCTAP)  was officially authorized by 
 the Enterprise on November 4, 2024, with $17 million available to eligible entities for 
 projects that will help reduce the environmental and health impacts of transportation in the 
 Nonattainment Area. 

 The Enterprise is currently reaching out to planning agencies in this area about CCTAP, and 
 responding to a growing number of emails for further information. A press release, webinar, 
 FAQ document, technical assistance, and other information will also be made available to 
 (including  resources in Spanish  ). 

 CCTAP Application Timeline 

 ●  November 2024 through February 2025: Open period for questions, technical 
 assistance, and identification of engineering review of proposed project. 

 ●  5:00 p.m., Feb. 25, 2025: Deadline to Submit Draft Applications for Review 

 ●  March through April 2025: Technical review of applications review for project feasibility. 

 ●  5:00 p.m., April 30, 2025: Deadline to Submit Final Applications. 

 ●  May 2025: Applications evaluated by Enterprise staff 

 ●  4:30 p.m., June 26, 2025: Board of Directors review and award projects. 

 ●  No later than July 31, 2025: Award Notices Sent to Applicable Parties 

 2 

https://www.codot.gov/programs/naapme/naapme-community-clean-transportation-assistance-grant-funding-program
https://www.codot.gov/programs/naapme/assets-1/naapme-cctap-grant-with-application-fiscal-year-2025-approved-by-board_a11y-spanish-70-updated-timeline.pdf


 Dr
af

t 
 Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report 

 Board Meetings 
 Throughout Calendar Year 2024, the Enterprise and its Board of Directors worked to build on 
 the foundation of its 10-Year Plan  ,  expanding  on those  concepts and learning more about 
 needs with stakeholders throughout the ozone nonattainment area. Throughout the year, the 
 Board of Directors met eleven times, with discussions ranging from decisions regarding 
 funding programs for the Enterprise to administrative and budgetary actions. 

 January 2024 

 The Board of Directors meeting was held on January 25th, with informational presentations 
 and discussion on the following topics: 
 ●  Local Match Requirements for the CDOT Multimodal Transportation Options Fund (MMOF); 
 ●  Approval of Proposal for NAAPME Program Evaluation Criteria; and 
 ●  Accessibility and Translation of NAAPME Materials. 

 February 2024 

 The Board of Directors meeting was held on February 22nd, with informational presentations 
 and discussion on the following topics: 
 ●  Adoption of the NAAPME FY 2024-25 Budget; 
 ●  Adoption of Rideshare and Retail Delivery Fee adjustments for FY 2024-25; 
 ●  Enterprise Financing Strategies; and 
 ●  Allocation of NAAPME Program Funds. 

 March 2024 

 The Board of Directors meeting was held on March 28th, with informational presentations and 
 discussion on the following topics: 
 ●  Colorado General Assembly - Legislative Session Update; 
 ●  Board Chair and Vice-Chair Elections; and 
 ●  Allocation of NAAPME Program Funds. 

 April 2024 

 The Board of Directors meeting was held on April 25th, with informational presentations and 
 discussion on the following topics: 
 ●  Board Policy Regarding Fiscal Management; and 
 ●  Allocation of NAAPME Program Funds. 

 May 2024 

 The Board of Directors meeting was held on May 23rd, with informational presentations and 
 discussion on the following topics: 
 ●  Board Policy Regarding Fiscal Management; and 
 ●  Allocation of NAAPME Program Funds. 

 3 



 Dr
af

t 
 Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report 

 June 2024 

 The Board of Directors meeting was held on June 27th, with informational presentations and 
 discussion on the following topics: 
 ●  Approved Board Policy Regarding Financial Management; 
 ●  Approved Enterprise Spending Plan; 
 ●  Approved revised NAAPME 10-Year Plan; and 
 ●  Allocation of NAAPME Program Funds. 

 July 2024 

 The Board of Directors meeting was held on July 25th, with informational presentations and 
 discussion on the following topics: 
 ●  Large Projects Grant Program Discussion; and 
 ●  Allocation of NAAPME Program Funds. 

 August 2024 

 The Board of Directors meeting was held on August 29th, with informational presentations 
 and discussion on the following topics: 
 ●  Annual Open Records Training; and 
 ●  Allocation of NAAPME Program Funds. 

 September 2024 

 The Board of Directors meeting was held on September 25th, when they approved a Small 
 Grant Funding Program and directed NAAPME Staff to create a Notice of Funding Opportunity 
 (NOFO) for it. 

 October 2024 

 The Board of Directors meeting was held on October 31st, with informational presentations 
 and discussion on the following topics: 
 ●  Review of draft Fiscal Year 2025 Budget; 
 ●  Update on NOFO Progress for Small Grant Funding Opportunity. 

 December 2024 

 The Board of Directors meeting was held on December 5th, with informational presentations 
 and discussion on the following topics: 
 ●  Review and approve the Enterprises’ Calendar Year 2024 Annual Report. 
 ●  Review and approve Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Reconciliation 

 4 



 Dr
af

t 
 Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report 

 Enterprise Budget 

 Fiscal Year 2023-24 
 Colorado's State  fiscal Year 2023-24 concluded on June 30, 2024. Most expenditures for this fiscal 
 year were administrative to continue to support the establishment of the Enterprise and identify 
 funding programs in line with the objectives outlined in statute and the Enterprise’s 10-Year 
 Plan  .  Enterprise expenses totaled $38,756. The Enterprise  allocated  $200,000 to the Board 
 contingency fund for the fiscal year, which was not used. These funds, and unused 
 administrative expenses ($330,682) were added to the roll-forward of funds allocated to 
 Enterprise funded programs ($19,444,258). 

 Fiscal Year 2024-25 
 The Board of Directors adopted the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget in February 2024, allocating 
 $30.33 million in anticipated revenue for the fiscal year. This amount represents the total 
 funds available for the Enterprise to invest in its initiatives during Fiscal Year 2024-25. As the 
 Board advances its decisions regarding the Enterprise’s program of projects, it is expected 
 that funds will be allocated to specific initiatives, including the CCTAP program and the 
 broader grant program with a primary focus on supporting Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) projects, all 
 aligned with its business purpose. Table 1 presents the estimated breakdown by revenue 
 allocation category for the fiscal year. 

 Table 1 - NAAPME Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget Overview 

 Budget Line Item  Total Estimated 
 Revenues 

 Total Estimated 
 Expenditures 

 Total Estimated 
 Allocations 

 Total Estimated Revenues  $30,325,919 

 Total Programmed & Project 
 Support Services  $25,870,000 

 Total  Administrative & 
 Operating Activities  $181,000 

 Total Debt Service  $0 

 Total Board Contingency 
 Reserve  $200,000 

 Total Revenues  $30,325,919 

 Total Expenditures  $26,051,000 

 Unbudgeted Revenues  $4,274,919 

 5 



 Dr
af

t 
 Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report 

 Staff provided a budget amendment to the approved fiscal year 2024-25 budget, which the 
 Board approved in December 2024. This amendment reconciled the discrepancies from 
 estimated revenue collection and remaining funds from fiscal year 2023-24 to actuals from 
 that year. 

 Fee Levels for the Air Pollution Per Ride Fee and Air Pollution Mitigation 
 Retail Delivery Fee 
 In accordance with Colorado Revised Statutes § 43-4-1303(7)(c)(I) & (II), the Board is able to 
 adjust the fee levels for both the Air Pollution per Ride fee and the Air Pollution Mitigation 
 Retail Delivery fee. The NAAPME Board adopted new fee levels for fiscal year 2024-25, based 
 on recommendations from the Colorado Department of Revenue and Enterprise, specifically: 

 ●  Increased Air Pollution per Ride fee for Non-Carshare and Gasoline Powered Vehicles from 
 23 ��₄ Cents to 24 Cents; 

 ●  Increased Air Pollution per Ride fee for Carshare / Zero Emission Vehicle (ZEV) Rideshare 
 rides from 12 Cents to 12 ¾ Cents; and 

 ●  Increased Air Pollution Mitigation Retail Delivery fee from 73/100 of one cent to 75/100 of 
 one cent. 

 The revised fee levels were reported to the Colorado Department of Revenue ahead of the 
 statutory deadline of March 15th. 

 Financial Status Report 
 The Air Pollution per Ride fee and Air Pollution Mitigation Retail Delivery fee established by 
 statute are ongoing revenue streams for the Enterprise. Along with fee adjustments approved 
 by the Board in February 2024, the Board reviewed and approved an updated revenue 
 estimate for fiscal year 2024-25 through fiscal year 2026-27. Table 2 details the estimated 
 revenue collection by fee for these years, replacing original estimates from previously. 

 Table 2 - Estimated Future Revenue Collection by Fiscal Year and Source 

 Revenue Sources 
 Fiscal Year 
 2024-25 

 Fiscal Year 
 2025-26 

 Fiscal Year 
 2026-27 

 Air Pollution Mitigation Retail Delivery Fee  $2.7 Million  $3.0 Million  $3.4 Million 

 Air Pollution Mitigation Per Ride Fee  $8.4 Million  $10.4 Million  $12.7 Million 

 Totals  $11.1  Million  $13.4  Million  $16.1  Million 

 6 



 Dr
af

t 
 Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report 

 Upcoming Activities 
 The Nonattainment Enterprise expects to spend most of its efforts in Winter-Spring 2025 on 
 administration of the Community Clean Transportation Assistance Program. This will include 
 reaching out to eligible communities in the Nonattainment Area, answering technical 
 questions about the grant and eligibility, and begin the process of accepting grant 
 applications. It is anticipated that the Board of Directors will make grant awards for this 
 funding opportunity in June of 2025. Enterprise staff will then update publicly available 
 information regarding the status of funding through its public dashboard regarding funding 
 decisions and statuses of projects. 

 The Enterprise will also work with other parts of CDOT on how best to establish and 
 administer a larger grant program for entities wishing to expand BRT programs throughout the 
 Nonattainment Area. This will include final budgetary allocation for a program, establishment 
 of eligibility criteria and how to evaluate applications, and other administrative efforts 
 related to this with advice and confirmation from the Board of Directors. Establishment of a 
 program for this effort is anticipated to be completed by the end of fiscal year 2025. 

 While this is not an exhaustive list of all the potential activities for calendar year 2025, it 
 should be an exciting and busy year for the Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation 
 Enterprise, which looks forward to beginning helping communities throughout the Denver 
 Metro and North Front Range areas of Colorado. 

 7 


	Structure Bookmarks
	Document
	P
	Figure

	NAAPME Board Directors Meeting
	December 5, 2024 | 3:00 PM - 4:30 PM
	Agenda
	I.
	I.
	I.
	Convene Meeting & Roll Call3:00 PM - 3:05 PMKristin Stephens, NAAPME Chair

	II.
	II.
	Public Comments 3:05 PM - 3:10 PMKristin Stephens, NAAPME Chair

	III.
	III.
	Decision Item:  3:10 PM - 3:15 PMApproval of Minutes from the October 31, 2024, Board of Directors MeetingKristin Stephens, NAAPME Chair

	IV.
	IV.
	Decision Item: 3:15 PM - 3:20 PMFiscal Year 2025 Budget ReconciliationDarius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

	V.
	V.
	Decision Item: 3:20 PM - 3:50 PMApprove NAAPME 2024 Annual ReportDarius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

	VI.
	VI.
	“Community Clean Transportation Assistance"3:50 PM - 4:00 PMSmall Grant Funding Program UpdateDarius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

	VII.
	VII.
	Large Grant Program Discussion4:00 PM - 4:10 PMDarius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

	VIII.
	VIII.
	Enterprise Budget and Program Updates4:10 PM - 4:30 PMDarius Pakbaz, NAAPME Program Administrator

	IX.
	IX.
	Adjournment4:30 PMKristin Stephens, NAAPME Chair


	Next Governing Board Meeting: January 23, 2025, 3:00 PM - 4:30 PM
	 
	Figure

	NAAPME Board of Directors Meeting - Minutes
	October 31, 2024, 3:00 PM to 4:30 PMLocation: CDOT HQ/Virtual (4:05)
	Attendance
	Present:
	Chair Stephens
	Director Ferko
	Director Holguin
	Director Suniga
	Vice Chair Baca
	Director Wheeler
	Excused Absences:
	Director Stockinger
	Guests:
	Kay Hruska – CDOT Office of Accounting and Finance
	Toni Wines – CDOT Office of Accounting and Finance
	Sam Foster - CDOT Office of Accounting and Finance
	Ryan Noles - CDOT R1 Transit
	Garrett Seddon - CDOT - DTD Administrative Branch
	Siivi Melorango - CDPHE 
	NAAPME Staff:
	Administrator Pakbaz Pakbaz - NAAPME Administrator 
	Suzanna Alvarado - NAAPME Board Secretary 
	Phil von Hake - CDOT - Multimodal Planning Branch
	I.
	I.
	I.
	Convene Meeting & Roll Call:Chair Stephens convened the meeting and Roll Call was conducted.
	(Video 5:06)


	II.
	II.
	Public Comment:Administrator Pakbaz indicated there was no public comment. 
	(Video 6:05)



	III.
	III.
	III.
	Decision Item: Approval of Minutes from the September 26, 2024, Board of Directors Meeting 
	(Video 6:33)



	Motion made to approve by Vice- Chair Baca, seconded by Director Ferko, all in favor, motion passed. 
	IV.
	IV.
	IV.
	Review draft Fiscal Year 2026 Budget  
	(Video 7:09)



	Administrator Pakbaz presented the draft budget for FY 2025-26 including anticipated revenue and roll overs for allocation and next steps. Final Budget for adoption by Board of Directors in February 2025. Administrator Pakbaz to bring back information on the adjustability of the revenue forecasting model at the next meeting.
	V.
	V.
	V.
	Enterprise Budget and Program Updates 
	 (Video 18:07)



	Administrator Pakbaz  reviewed the NAAPME Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget to Actuals and next steps. An update was provided for CDOT’s Communications Office and CDOT Policy and Government Relations on outreach around Small Grant NOFO and Call for Projects, as well as development of the NAAPME Annual Report for the Transportation Commission and Colorado General Assembly. 
	VI.
	VI.
	VI.
	“Community Clean Transportation Assistance" Small Grant Funding Program Update
	 (Video 22:07)



	Administrator Pakbaz discussed the progress of the Small Grant Program,“Community Clean Transportation Assistance”. The NOFO application elements along with the revised timeline were presented. The Grant Program application will be available on the NAAPME website November 4th to Feb 25, 2025. Administrator Pakbaz and Chair Stephens discussed  outreach, including presentations with local government entities and a webinar session for questions. 
	VII.
	VII.
	VII.
	Bus Rapid Transit Update - R1 Ryan Noles of CDOT presented an overview of the high-capacity bus service, Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) and the Federal Blvd BRT Project for the Board to consider for possible “Larger” Grant Program funding. Administrator Pabaz agreed that Directors Holguin and Director Wheeler could meet with Ryan to discuss particular considerations/concerns but would need to limit the meeting to two Board members present to avoid any open meeting rule violations.
	(Video 32:29)



	VIII.
	VIII.
	VIII.
	Adjournment  
	(Video 1:19:00)



	Next Governing Board Meeting: Thursday December 5, 2024, 3:00 - 4:30 PM
	P
	Figure

	Registry of Actions
	Date of Meeting: October 31, 2024 
	Action Number
	Action Number
	Action Number
	Action 
	Decision

	2024-20
	2024-20
	Motion to approve minutes from September 26, 2024 Board of Directors Meeting
	●
	●
	●
	Motion made by Vice Chair Baca, seconded by Director Ferko

	●
	●
	All in favor, no opposed, motion passed.



	Approved


	Suzanna Alvarado                                                           
	Suzanna Alvarado                                                           
	11/22/2024  
	   

	Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Board Secretary 
	 Draft  NAAPME 2024 Annual Report  Pursuant to C.R.S. § 43-4-1303 (10)(a)(IV)  Reporting Period: January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 
	 Draft  NAAPME 2024 Annual Report  Pursuant to C.R.S. § 43-4-1303 (10)(a)(IV)  Reporting Period: January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 
	 Draft  NAAPME 2024 Annual Report  Pursuant to C.R.S. § 43-4-1303 (10)(a)(IV)  Reporting Period: January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 

	 Draft  Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report  Background  The Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME, or the Enterprise) was  established within the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) to support projects that  mitigate the environmental and health impacts of increased air pollution from motor vehicles  in nonattainment areas of Colorado. Created by Colorado Senate Bill 21-260 (SB 21-260,  “Sustainability of the Transportation 
	 Draft  Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report  Background  The Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME, or the Enterprise) was  established within the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) to support projects that  mitigate the environmental and health impacts of increased air pollution from motor vehicles  in nonattainment areas of Colorado. Created by Colorado Senate Bill 21-260 (SB 21-260,  “Sustainability of the Transportation 

	 Draft  Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report  ●  Reduce the environmental and health impacts of transportation  Reducing impacts from the construction and ongoing operation of transportation projects:  ○  Reduce the impact of large highway construction projects;  ○  Retrofitting construction equipment for highway projects;  ○  Air quality monitoring for larger highway construction projects; and  ○  Roadside vegetation barriers.  ●  Improve neighborhood connect
	 Draft  Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report  ●  Reduce the environmental and health impacts of transportation  Reducing impacts from the construction and ongoing operation of transportation projects:  ○  Reduce the impact of large highway construction projects;  ○  Retrofitting construction equipment for highway projects;  ○  Air quality monitoring for larger highway construction projects; and  ○  Roadside vegetation barriers.  ●  Improve neighborhood connect

	 Draft  Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report  Board Meetings  Throughout Calendar Year 2024, the Enterprise and its Board of Directors worked to build on  the foundation of its 10-Year Plan  ,  expanding  on those  concepts and learning more about  needs with stakeholders throughout the ozone nonattainment area. Throughout the year, the  Board of Directors met eleven times, with discussions ranging from decisions regarding  funding programs for the Enterprise 
	 Draft  Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report  Board Meetings  Throughout Calendar Year 2024, the Enterprise and its Board of Directors worked to build on  the foundation of its 10-Year Plan  ,  expanding  on those  concepts and learning more about  needs with stakeholders throughout the ozone nonattainment area. Throughout the year, the  Board of Directors met eleven times, with discussions ranging from decisions regarding  funding programs for the Enterprise 

	 Draft  Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report  June 2024  The Board of Directors meeting was held on June 27th, with informational presentations and  discussion on the following topics:  ●  Approved Board Policy Regarding Financial Management;  ●  Approved Enterprise Spending Plan;  ●  Approved revised NAAPME 10-Year Plan; and  ●  Allocation of NAAPME Program Funds.  July 2024  The Board of Directors meeting was held on July 25th, with informational presentatio
	 Draft  Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report  June 2024  The Board of Directors meeting was held on June 27th, with informational presentations and  discussion on the following topics:  ●  Approved Board Policy Regarding Financial Management;  ●  Approved Enterprise Spending Plan;  ●  Approved revised NAAPME 10-Year Plan; and  ●  Allocation of NAAPME Program Funds.  July 2024  The Board of Directors meeting was held on July 25th, with informational presentatio

	 Draft  Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report  Enterprise Budget  Fiscal Year 2023-24  Colorado's State  fiscal Year 2023-24 concluded on June 30, 2024. Most expenditures for this fiscal  year were administrative to continue to support the establishment of the Enterprise and identify  funding programs in line with the objectives outlined in statute and the Enterprise’s 10-Year  Plan  .  Enterprise expenses totaled $38,756. The Enterprise  allocated  $200,000 to
	 Draft  Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report  Enterprise Budget  Fiscal Year 2023-24  Colorado's State  fiscal Year 2023-24 concluded on June 30, 2024. Most expenditures for this fiscal  year were administrative to continue to support the establishment of the Enterprise and identify  funding programs in line with the objectives outlined in statute and the Enterprise’s 10-Year  Plan  .  Enterprise expenses totaled $38,756. The Enterprise  allocated  $200,000 to

	 Draft  Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report  Staff provided a budget amendment to the approved fiscal year 2024-25 budget, which the  Board approved in December 2024. This amendment reconciled the discrepancies from  estimated revenue collection and remaining funds from fiscal year 2023-24 to actuals from  that year.  Fee Levels for the Air Pollution Per Ride Fee and Air Pollution Mitigation  Retail Delivery Fee  In accordance with Colorado Revised Statutes §
	 Draft  Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report  Staff provided a budget amendment to the approved fiscal year 2024-25 budget, which the  Board approved in December 2024. This amendment reconciled the discrepancies from  estimated revenue collection and remaining funds from fiscal year 2023-24 to actuals from  that year.  Fee Levels for the Air Pollution Per Ride Fee and Air Pollution Mitigation  Retail Delivery Fee  In accordance with Colorado Revised Statutes §

	 Draft  Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report  Upcoming Activities  The Nonattainment Enterprise expects to spend most of its efforts in Winter-Spring 2025 on  administration of the Community Clean Transportation Assistance Program. This will include  reaching out to eligible communities in the Nonattainment Area, answering technical  questions about the grant and eligibility, and begin the process of accepting grant  applications. It is anticipated that the Bo
	 Draft  Nonattainment Area Air Pollution Mitigation Enterprise (NAAPME) - 2024 Annual Report  Upcoming Activities  The Nonattainment Enterprise expects to spend most of its efforts in Winter-Spring 2025 on  administration of the Community Clean Transportation Assistance Program. This will include  reaching out to eligible communities in the Nonattainment Area, answering technical  questions about the grant and eligibility, and begin the process of accepting grant  applications. It is anticipated that the Bo







Accessibility Report



		Filename: 

		0 - 2024-12-02 NAAPME Board of Directors Packet.pdf






		Report created by: 

		


		Organization: 

		





[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]


Summary


The checker found no problems in this document.



		Needs manual check: 2


		Passed manually: 0


		Failed manually: 0


		Skipped: 7


		Passed: 23


		Failed: 0





Detailed Report



		Document




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set


		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF


		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF


		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order


		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified


		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar


		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents


		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast


		Page Content




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Tagged content		Skipped		All page content is tagged


		Tagged annotations		Skipped		All annotations are tagged


		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order


		Character encoding		Skipped		Reliable character encoding is provided


		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged


		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker


		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts


		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses


		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive


		Forms




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged


		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description


		Alternate Text




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text


		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read


		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content


		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation


		Other elements alternate text		Skipped		Other elements that require alternate text


		Tables




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot


		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR


		Headers		Skipped		Tables should have headers


		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column


		Summary		Skipped		Tables must have a summary


		Lists




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L


		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI


		Headings




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Appropriate nesting		Skipped		Appropriate nesting







Back to Top


